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Attachment A
Superseding Indietment
United States v, David Lague

Counts 1-23 21 11.8.C, §5 841{a)()) and B41{bY(1)(C) - Distribution of Schedule 1f
and 25-38 Controlled Substances

Count 24, 39, 21 U8.C, § 841(a)(1) and 841(1)(2)}— I:itstﬂbutmn of Schedule IV
and 40 Controlled Substances

Count 41 18 11.8.0. § 1349 - Consplracy to Conmuit Health Care Fraud

Counta 42-47 18 ULS.C, § 1347 - Health Carve Praund

Counts 1-23 and 25-38: For each count, Maximum 20 Years Imprisonment; Maximum Fine of
$1,000,000 or twive the galn or loss; Minimum Supervised Release of 3 Years; Maximum
Supervised Relsase of Life; Mandatory $100 Special Assessment; Potential Deportation;
Forfeiture, Mandatory and Discretionary Denial of Federal Benefits,

Count 24, 39, and 40: For each count, Meximum § Years Iinprisonment; Maxinum Pine of
$250,000 or twice the gain or foss; Minimum 1 Year Supervised Release; Maximum Supervised
Relsase of Life; Mandatory $100 Special Assessment; Potential Deoportation; Fcnﬁarture‘
Mandatory and Discretionary Denial of Federal Benefits,

Counts 4§-47; For each count, Maximum 10 Years Inyprisonment; Maximum Fiog of $250,000
or twice the gain or loss; Midmun Supervised Release of 3 Years; Mandatory $100 Bpecial
Assessment; Potential Deportation; Forfeiture; Restitution,
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Wnited Staten BDigtriet Court

FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

VENUE; OAKLAND

UNITED STATES OF AMERIGA,

V.
FIL B
Dris &9 2017
DAVID LAGUE CLE 5 TS S
QeI BISTRICT OF cm,@lgja\
DEFENDRANT(S).

SECOND SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

Counts 1-23 and 25-38: 21 LLE.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 841{b)(1(C) —
Distribwgion of Schadule I Controlled Substances: Counts 24, 39,
and 40: 21 U.E.C. § 841{a)(1) and 841(b)(2) — Distrlbidion of
Schaciuie IV Controlled Substances, Count 41: 18 U.8.C. § 1349 ~
Consplracy to Commit Health Care Fraud; Counds 42-47: 18 U.B.C.
§ 1347 ~ Haglth Care Frawd
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BRIAN J. STRETCH (CABN 163973)

United States Attorney Fg 1L '@‘ @

NEC 0o ANt
HONG
SUSAN X SR Courr

3.5, DIt
Nﬁ%ﬁ?gﬂ DISTRIGT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
| NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
OAKLAND DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) NO, CR 1700150 HS8G
Plaintiff, )
} VIOLATIONS: 21 U.S.C. § 841 « Distribution of 4
) Controlled Substance; 18 U.8.C. § 1349 ~
v } Conspiracy to Commit Flealth Care Fraud; 18 U.8.C.
) § 1347 ~ Heath Care Fraud; 18 U,8,C. § 982 and 21
) US.C, § 853 ~ Criminal Forleiture Allegations
DAVID LAGUE, %
Defendant. )
)
)

AECOND SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

The Grand JFury cﬁarges: _

COUNTS ONE THROUGH NINE: (21 U.8.C. §§ 841 (a)(1) & 841(BY1XC) ~ Distributing
Cxycodone Outside the Scope of Professional Practice)

1 On or abont the dates listed below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant
DAVID LAGUE,

a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a -

mixture und substance containing a detectable mnount of oxycodene, a Schedule 1T controlled substance,

to the following pm'sané, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of

professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose;

SUPERSEDING TNDICTMENT 1
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Uy CDATE | L QUENE.
o 10/13/2016 8.L.
2 12£12/2016 GRS
3 17672015 L.
4 10/25/2016 . DL
3 1172572016 DI

6 61182015 K.0.
7 /1972016 K.C.
g 12/18/2014 (two LF,

prescriptions)

g Y211/2015 (eight TF,

~ prescriptions)

Hach in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841 (@)(1) and GXIXC).

COUNTS TEN THROUGH TWELVE:

xymorphons Outs

21 USLC. §8 341(3251 } & 841 (b)(1 j)g())m})isuﬁ:uthag
[ 28y

e the Scope ofessional Practics)

2 On or about the dates listed below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant

DAVID LAGUE,

# reglstrant authorized to dispense confrolled substaness, knowingly and Intentionally distributed a

mixture and substance comaining & detectable amount of oxymorpbone, a Schedule If controlled

substance, to the following persons, knowing and Intending that the distribution was outside the seope of

professional practice and not for a legltimate medical purpose:

10 1/6/2015 D.L.
n 10125016 DL,
12, 11/29/2016 DAL

If SUPERSEDENG INDICTMENT
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Bach In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and (B)(1XC).

GO NAT: | (SO HO00.
3 On or about the dates lsted below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant
DAVID LAGUE, |
a registrant anthorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a
mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of methadone, a Schedule If controlled substancs,

to the Following persons, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of

professional practics and not for 2 legitimate medical purpose:
13 162015 DL,
" 1025016  pL
15 112912016 ' DL
17 31212015 M.C.M.
18 51812015 MCM.
19 1032016 M.CM.
20 ' NnoNe K.0,

20 §§ Bach in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841()(1) and (bY1XC).

211
22
23
24
%5
y ll
| 27
28]

COUNTS TWENTY-ONE THROUGH TWENTY-THRRE: (@1 1U.8.C. 85 841X &
_ 841(HIHC) ~ Distributing _
Arg}nheiamins Outside the Soope of
Professional Practices)
4. - Onorabout the dates Hsted below, in the Novtherm District of Californis, the defendané
DAVID LAGUE,
a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distibuted &

mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of amphetaniing, a Schedule ¥ cantrolled

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 3
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|

substance, to the following persons, knowing and intending that the distribution was cutside the scope of

professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose:

21 - 14612015 D.L.
22 107&5716 DL
23 : 11/29/16 B.L.

Each in violation of Title 21, United Sfates Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(C).

COUNT TWENTY.FOUR: (1US.C §%§41{a§(§) & 841(b)(2) - Distributing Clonszepam Outside.
the Scope of Professional Practice) _

5. On or abum_detﬁber 8, 2016, in the Northern District of Caltfornia, the defendant

134 . DAVID LAGUE,

14

15l

16
17
18

19 |

20
21

22
23|
o4 {f

.25
26
27
28

a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed o
mixtwe and substance containing & detectable amount of clonazepam, e Schedule TV controlled
substance, 1o ILL., knowing and intending that the distribution wzté outside the seope of professional
practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose, in violation of Title 21, United Stateg Code, Sections
841(a)(1), (bX. |

QUGILTHIRTY: (21 U.B.C. §§ 841(a)(1) & 841(b)(1N(C) ~
Distributing Fentany! Outside the Scope of
Professional Practice)

COUNTS TWENTY-F,

DAVID LAGUE,

 a vegistrant authorized io dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionally distiibuted a

practice and not for a Iegitimate medical purpose:

SUPERSEDENG INDICTMENT ’ 4

6. On or about the dates listed below, i the Worthern Distriot of California, the defendant '

‘mixture and substance containing & detectable amount of fentanyl, a Schedule U comrolled substance, to

the following persons, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of professional
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COUNT . | DATE |- CONTROLEND | QUANT
e bt SUBSEANGE T L
25 22312013 Fentany! {1600 meyp) 150 M.CM.
26 51112018 Fentanyl (400 meg) 60 M.C.M.
27 5/8/2015 Fentanyl (800 nweg) 60 M.CM.
28 52612013 Fentanyl (400 meg) 60 M.C.M.
28 1712016 Fentanyl (800 meg) . 128 M.CM.
30 172016 | Pentanyl (800 mog) 2 MCM,
Each in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(2)(1) and (bj(l)(ﬁ).
WMWW (21 UB.C. §3 B41(a)(1) & 841X D(C)~ -

7.

Distributing Hydromorphone Outside the

Scope of Professional Practice)

DAVID LAGUE,

On or about the dates listed below, in the Northeen District of California, the defendant

a registrant anthorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intenﬁmipﬁty distributed a

mixiure and substance contalning & detectable amount of hydromorphone, a Schedule i controlled

substance, to the following persons, knowing and Intending that the distribution was outside the scope of

| professional practice and not for a legitimate medicnl purpose:

31 . 32015 MOM.
1 5812015 M.CM.
33 182016 MM,

Each in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Beations 841(a)(1) and (B)(1)C).

COUNTS THIRTY-FOUR THROUGH THIRTY-80K:

(21 U.B.C, 68 841 (a)(1) & B41{b)(1Y(C)-~

Distributing Morphine Ouigide the Scope of
Professional Practice)

8. On or about the dates Hsted below, in the Northern District of Califomia, the defendant

SUPRRSEDING INDICTMENT 5
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]

DAVID LAGUE,

2 a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and intentionaily distribnded a
3 | mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of morphine, a Schedule 11 controlied substance,
4 {l to the followdng persons, knowing and infending that the distribution was outside the scope of
5 | professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose:
7 34 3212015 M.CM.
§ 33 5/3/2015 M.CM.
9 36 VBE2016 MCM.
10

Each in violation of Title 21, United Sites Code, Sections 841(a)(1), ()1 (C)

S THIRTY-SEVEN and THIRTY-EIGHT: (21 17.8.C. §§ B41(a)(1) & 841¢ )(z)(c%

Distributing Hydrocudong Qutside the Scope of

Il SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

4. Professional Practice)
15 9, On or about tiie: dates listad below, in the Northem District of Californig, the defendant
16 DAVID LAGUE, _

17 || a registrant authorized to dispense controfled substances, knowingly and intentionally distibuted a

18 If mixtore and substance containing o detectable amount of hydrocodone, a Schedule I controlled

19 || substance, to the fniiuwing pergons, knowing and hitending that the distribution wag outside the scope of
20 |l professional practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose: 7

22 37 182015 K.0.

23 38 91912016 K0,

24

25 | Each in violation of Title 2{, United States Code, Sections 841()(1), (M(IXC)

26 i/

27 i

i
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COUNT TRURTY-NINE: Q1 US,C. §§ 841(a)(1) & B41{b)}(2) — Distributing Alprazolam Outside
: the Scops of Professional Practice) :
10 Onor about September 19, 2016, in the Norfher Distvict of Californin, the defendant
DAVID LAGUE,

a registrant authorized to dispense controlled substances, knowingly and Intentionally distributed a
mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of alprazolam, # Schedule IV controlled
substance, to X.0.,, knowing and intending that the distribution was outside the scope of professiona
practice and not for & legltimate medical purpose, in vielation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections
B41()(1) and 841(6)(2).

COUNTFORTY: (21 U.S.C, §§ 841(a)(1) & 841(1)(2) - Distributing Carisoprodo! Outsids the
- Seope of Protessional Practice)

1L, Onor sbout Beptemnber 19, 2016, in the Northern District of Cafifornia, the defendant
DAVID LAGUE,

| & Togistrant anthorized to dispense somtrolled substances, knowingly and intentionally distributed a

{ mixture and substunce containing 2 detectable amount of carisoprodol, a Sohedule IV controlled

substance, to K.O., knowing and intending that the disteibution was outside the scope of professional

practice and not for a legitimate medical purpose, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections

1| 841()(1) and B41BI2).

COUNE FEORTY-ONE: (18 U.8.C. § 1349 - Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud)

14, The sllegations of Paragraphs 1 through 11 of this Superseding Indictment are re-alleged
and incorporated herein as if' set forth fully here. ‘

13, Atalltizoes relovant to this Superseding Indictment, DAVID LAGUE was a physician’s
assistant licensed to practice in the State of California pursuant to 2 loenge issued by the Medical Board
of Californiu, LAGUE was s Drug Enforcement Administeation registrant and was authorized to
?rescribe controlled substances i the usual course of his professions] practice. LAGUE was enrolled ag

a Medieare provider,

| SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 7
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14, The Medicare Program (“Medicare”™) was a federal program that provided free or below-
cogt health opre benefits to certain individuals, primarily the slderly, blind, and disabled. The benefits
available under Medicare were prescribed by statuie and by federal regulations under the suspices of the
United States Department of Health and Human Services -(“HHS“); through ity ageney, the Center for

Madicare and Medizaid Services (“CMB"). Individuals who recelved benefits under Medicare were

compnanly referred 1o as Medicara “boneficlaries.”

15, The Modicare Part D Program (*Part D), algo known as Medicare Prescription Drug

Plan, covered the costs of preseription drugs and preseription drug Insurance premiungs for Medicare

L =S R - T - S TR O

beneficiaries. Medicare beneficiaries envolled in Part Id were entitled 1o use their benefits to pay for el

s
o8

or part of the cost of preseriptions. The Part I program was overseen by CMS, and Part I Prescription

ki
el

Prug Plans were administered by private companies (e.z., Unitéd{*laaim Ciroup, Blue Cross and Blug

12 || Shield, Wellpoint) that applied to CMS to participato in the Part I> progrem. When approved, these

13 1 private companies contracted with the Federal Government to be Part D sponsors and marketed Part D -
14 {} drug plans directly to Medicare beneficiaries.

15 16, Medicare was o “health care henefit program,” as defined by Title 18, United States

16 1| Code, Section 24(b), in that it was a public or private plan, affecting interstate commerce, under which
17 § medical benefits, items, and services were provided to individuals,

1% 17.  Beginning no later than in or about approximately Mareh 17, 2014, and continuing

19 || theough approximately December 31, 2016, in the Northern District of Caltfornia, LAGUE devised and
20 |} intended to devise a scheme and artifice to defrawd health care benefit prt::g;zmm in connection with theh
21 {{ delivery of and pay:ﬁant for health cave benefits, Hems, and services, by knowingly submitthyg, and

22 |l eausing others to submit, false and fraudulent claima fof preseriptions and falsely representing that those
23 || preseriptions were presoribed in the usual course of professional medical practics and for a legitimate
24 i medical purpose, ' |
25 18, LAGUE and M.C.M, met zi a doctor’s office in San Leandro, Califoraia, in order for

26 [ LAGUE to deliver prescriptions (o M.C.M. for controlled substances, including substances containing -
27 ithigh doses of fmitanyi, omtside of the nsual course of professional medical practice and without a

28

 SUPERSEDING IMDICTMENT 8
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legitimate medical purpose. LAGUE knowingly wrote these prescriptions outside of the usnal course of
| prafessional medical practice and withont » legitimate medical purpose,
19, M.CM. was a beneficiary of health vare bensfit programs that were administered by

i Meds gare. As a beneficiary, M,C.M. had insurance coverage for presoription medieations,

20, LAGUE knew that MC.M. was anroiled in a henlth care benefit program that paid for the
gontrolled substances he prescribed. LAGUE cammunicatad with M.C.M.’s insuranee providers to
facilitate payment of the controlled substances that he preseribed for MUC.M. LAGUE knew that
M.C.M. intended to and did use insurance benefits to pay for the contralled substances he preseribed. |
LAGUE further kuew that the issuancs of the prescriptions to MAC.M. for controlled substances that
would be paid for by a healih care benefit program was outside of the usual course of professional
medical practice and witheut » legitimute medical purpose,

21, M.C.M, presented proseriptions for controlled substances preseribed by LAGUE at
pharmacies, and used or attenpted to use insmance coverage 1o pay for some or &ll of the controlied
subsiances, Claims for some of these preseriptions were submitted to a health care benefit program for
rehnbtirsement and payment, |

22.  Between approximately March 17, 2014 and December 31, 2016, the Medicare Pa D
Preseription Dyug Plan paid approximately $508,611.29 in fulse and frandulent Medicare claims for
fentanyl products that were prescribed by LAGUE to M.C.M, outside of the usual course of professional

medical practice and without a legitimate medical purpose.

23.  Beginning on a date unknown to the Grand Tury, but no later than in ar about March 17,

§2{}‘14, and continuing through approximately January 13, 2017, both dates being approximate and -
inclusive, in the Northern }i}istrig:t of California, and elsewhere, the defendant

| DAVID LAGUE
and others knows and anknown to the grand jury, did knowingly consplire and agres to executs, and to
ﬁtte:mpt to execute, a schenie and arfifice to deftaud a health care benefit program affecting commerce,
ay defined in Title 18, United States Code, Seption 24(5), namely, Medicare, all in cormection with the

delivery of and payment for healih care benefits, items, and setvices, in violation of Titfle 18, Upited

| States Code, Section 1347,

SUPERSEDING INDICTMBNT 9
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All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349,

COUNTS FORTY-TWO THROUGH FORTY-BEVEN: (18 U.S.C. § 1347 — Health Care Fraud)
24, The allegationy of Paragraphs I through 23 of this Superseding Indictment ae re-altoged
and Incorporated herein ag If set forth fully here,
25, Onorabont the dates set forth below, in the Northern District of California, the defendant
DAVID LAGUE

| diet knowingly and intentionally execute and attempt to execute a scheme and artifice to defraud a health

{ eare benefit rogram affecting commeree, as defined in Titte 18, United States Code, Section 24(b),

18 || namely, Medicare, all in conmeetion with t}ie delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and
11 i services, and did for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute said fraudulent scheme,
12 |t knowingly and willfully submit and cauge to be submitted to Medicare, and to be paid by Medicare, the
13 )i following false and fraudulent claims:
14 : »
16 a2 3272015 Fentamyl (1600 meg) $12,008.49 |
7 43 52015 | Vensmayl (400 meg) $29,929.83
13 | smaols Fentany! (800 meg) $6,412.30
o 45 512872015 Fentanyl (400 me) $29,920.83
0 46 s Pentany! (800 meg) §14,224,85
21 47 17142016 Fentanyl (800 meg) $12,171.81
22 )
23 Eaeh in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Seption 1347,
| 24
25 | FORFEITURE ALLEG 5 SSS%SC §§ 98}.@\ (1XC), 982_@'{"!}; Z1US.C. § 853; and 28
" S0, § 2461(e) - Criminal Forfelinge)
27 | 26, The factual allegations contained it Paragraphs 1 through 25 are re-alleged and fully
28 |l incorporated as if get forth heve, for the purpose of alleging forfeitire pursuant to Title 18, United States
SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT ' 10
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E.‘.'od_e'x, Sections 981(a)(1)(C} and 982(a)(7), Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, and Title 28,
United States Code, Section 2461(¢). o

27, Upon conviction for any of the offenses alleged in Counts One through Forty, the

defendant

DAVID LAGUR
shall forfeit to the United States, prrsuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, any propesty

constituting, or derived from, any procesds that defendant obtained, directly or indirectly, as the tesult of

such violations, and any property used or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to comumit or to

e %

facilitate the commission of such violations, including but not limited to his Hoense 1o practice as a

physician’s assistant in California (License No. PAIGY03).

,...,....
Fen T v ]

28, Upon a conviction of any of the offonses alleged in Counts Fosty-One throngh Forty-
Y

Pt
R

Seven, the.defondant

e
1a2

DAVID LAGUE
shali forfeit to the Unlted States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 981(a}(1)C) and

e T )
[¥ T N

9B2(a)(7), and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c), all property, real or personal, fhat

—
48

constitites or is derived, directly or indirectly, from gross proeeeds traceable to the cotaraission of the

—
i

offense, including but not limited to a sum of money equal to the gross proceeds obtained as a vesult of

| the offense,

s
o

29, I any of the property, as a result of any act or oxnission of the defendant(s):

avey
e

a. catmot be located upon the exsrcise of due diligence;

2 b
—

b, has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, & thivd party;

%
i8]

o, has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

Y
38

d heas been substantially diminished in value; or

LB
b

_ 2. has been comumingled with other property which cammot be divided without
23 ‘ difficulty,

26 {} the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of substifute property pursusnt to Title 21,
27 [t United States Code, Seetion 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Ssction 2RA(bX(1).
28 All in violation of Title {8, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(7) and 982{a)('1); Title 21,

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT il
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United States Code, Section 853; and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c); and Rule 32,2 of

the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure,

DATED: December 5, 2017 A TRUE 'B'ILL.

FOREPERSON .~

BRIAN I. STRETCH
United States Attotney

E&XT |

FRANK RIEBLI
Deputy Chief, OCDETF Section

L

AUSARITA T, LIN

(Approved as to form:

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 12
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QLK. 5. DIBTRICT QOUAT
NORTRERN DISTRIGT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UBA, , Case No.17-cr-00150-HSG-1
Plaintiff,
v oo VERDICT FORM
DAVID LAGUE,
iﬁefwdﬂmf

We, the Juxy in the above-captioned cage, present the following unanimous verdiot;
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Batient S.L,
1. Hasthe government proven the defendant putlty beyond a reasonable doubt of

| distributing the contzolled substances Hsted below to patlent $.1., on the dates lsted below, in

violation of 21 U.8.C. § 841(a)(1), as charged in the Second Superseding Indictment?

Guilty / Not Guilty
Count Date Controlied Sabstance ez, (CIYCIE G18)
1 10113116 oxyeodons ! NOTGUILTY
2 12/12/16 axycodone ! NOTGIILTY
Go fo the next page.
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2. Has the government proven the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of
distributing the controlied substances listed below to patient D.L., on the dates listed below, in

violation of 21 U1.8.C, § 841(a)(1), as charged in the Second Superseding Indictment?

Guilty / Not Guilty
 Counnt Date Controlled Substance ... (civcle ape)

3 1/6113 oxycodone / NOTGUILTY

i() 1/6/15 oxymorphone I NOT GUILTY
13 1/6/15 methadons [ NOTOUILTY

21 16013 amphetaming » [ NOTGUILTY

4 10125/16 oxyoodone ! WOTGUILTY

1t 10/25/16 oxymorphione )/ NOTGUILTY

14 10425116 methadone { NOTQUILTY
2 10/25/16 amphetamine 3! NOTGUILTY
L 11/29/16 oxycodone ) [ NOTGUILTY

12 1129116 oxymorphone / NQT GUILTY

13 11/29/18 raethadone A [ NOTGUILTY

23 11/29/16  amphetamine )/ NOTGUILTY

24 10/6/16 Clonszepam J | NOTGUILTY

-G to the next page.
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Case 4:17-cr-00150-HSG  Document 145 Filed 07/24/18 Page 4 of 8

Patient KO,

3 Has the government proven thp defendant guiliy beyond a reasonable doubt of

distributing the controlled substauces listed below to patient X.0., on the dates listed below, in
violation of 21 U.8.C. § 841(a)(1), as charged in the Second Superseding Indictment?

Count
6

37
7
20
38
39
4D

- Qo to the next page.

Date
&I18/15

6/18/15
9119716
9/19/16
9/19/16
9/19/16
9/19/16

Gimilty / Not Guilty
Cantrolled Substance {eircle one)
oxycodone 7 QUILTY D/ NOT QUILTY
hydrocodone ¢~ GUILTY) / NOT GUILTY
nxycodone ( GUILTY Y/ NOTGUILTY
methadone ¢ G:) /  NOT GQUILTY
hydrocodone c: Gnm Y/ NOT GUILTY
olprazolam ¢ Giff’ )1 NOTGUILTY
carisoprodol {}UILT? Y/ NOT GUILTY
| GUILTY




inited States District Conrt

Northern Distriet of Califords

3OBY B2 B2 OB D OBy ORI OB wed e ed el b Baek el ek e e
gs&mm#mwwow:chxm.hw!\awe

H Case 4:17-cr-00150-HSG Document 145 Filed 07/24/18 Page 5 of 8

Patient J.F,
4, Has the government proven the defendani guilty beyond a rersonable doubt of
| distiibuting the controlied substances listed below to patlent J.F., on the dates listed below, in
viclation of 21 US.C. § 841(a)(1), as charged in the Second Superseding Indictment?

. Guilty / Not Guilty
Count Date Controlled Substance _ _  (circle dne)
8§ 121314 nxycodone { QUILTY >/ NOTGUILTY
9 125 oxycodone ¢ GUILTY )/ NOTGUILTY.
Go to the next page.

H
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Patlont M.C.M.

3 Has the government proven the defendent puilty beyond a reasomble doubt of

disteibuting the controlled substances listed befow to patient M,C.M., on the dates listed below, in

violations of 21 U.8.C. § 841(a)(1), a5 charged in the Second Superseding Jndictment?

Count
25

17
31

34
76
18
27
32
35
28
29
D
19
33
36

Go to the next page,

Date
2723715

3/2/15
3215
3215
5115
518115
5/8/15
5/8/15
5/8/15
5/26115
17116
116
186
17818
1/8/16

Controlled Bubstance ) ““(g;reggn%‘my
fentany} /  NOTGUILTY
mefhadone ¢ G YD/ NOT Gﬂl‘L’i‘Y
hydromorphone Y™/ NOT GUILTY
morphine g G 21 NOTGUILTY
fentany! @i NOT (UILTY
methadone C@:}f NOTQUILTY
fontanyl @f NOT GUILTY -
hydromorphone GUILTY ) /7 NOTGUILTY
morphing GUILTY )/ NOTGUILTY
fntanyl  ~GUILTY )/ NOT GULTY
fnanyl < GUILTY )/ NOT GUILTY
fertanyl  GUITY ) /  NOT GUILTY
methadone ¢ GUILTY )/ NOT GUILTY
hydromorphone " GUILTY >/ NOT GUILTY
morphine ¢ GUILTY 3 NOT GUILTY
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6. Has the government proven the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of
eonspiracy to cornmit health care fravd, in viclation of 18 US.C. § 1349, as charged in Count

Tinited Statey ‘Bmfnﬁ Cort
Northern Dishricr of Cplifomin
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Forty-One of the Second Superseding htdictment?

GUILTY (clrele one) { NOTGUILTY

(o to the next page.
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7. Has the government proven the defendant guilty heyvond a reasonable doubt of
| health care frand, in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 1347, on the dates listed below, a3 charged in Counts
Forty-Two through Forty-Seven of the Second Superseding Indictment?

Guilty / Not Guilty
Count Date Controlled Substance (cixeleong) .|
42 3215 fontanyl GUILTY /( NOTGUILTY

43 5115 fentany] QUILTY 4
44 5/8115 fontany! GUILTY |/ N

“ 45 snans fentanyl GUILTY ¢ NOT GUILT
46 1716 fentany! QUILTY ¢ NOT GUILTY
n 114/16 ~ fentany] GUILTY ".

L —

Diated: ’:S"Qi:} A, O % in Onkland, Californis.

Jury Foreperson






